
Mayor 
James Kallander 
 

Council Members 
Keith van den Broek 
James Kacsh 
David Allison 
Bret Bradford 
EJ Cheshier 
David Reggiani 
Robert Beedle 
 

City Manager 
Mark Lynch 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Robyn Kincaid 
 

Student Council 
Dustin Marchant 
Carl Ranney 

COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

FEBRUARY 23, 2012 @ 7:00 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

AGENDA 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

B.  ROLL CALL 

Mayor James Kallander, Council members Keith van den Broek, James Kacsh,  
David Allison, Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani, and Robert Beedle 

 

C.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA………………...…………………………….….…. (voice vote) 
 

D.  DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

E.  COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

1.  Guest Speakers 
   a. Dick Groff, in re Snowpocalypse hot wash report 

2. Audience Comments regarding agenda items  
   

F. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR……….…………...………............................... (roll call vote) 

3. Proclamation of School Board recognition month February, 2012…………………………..……... (page 1) 
4. Appointment of 2012 Election Board members……………………………………………...……... (page 2) 

5. Record unexcused absence of Council member Beedle 2/1/12 Regular Council Meeting 

  

G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

6. Minutes of 02-01-12 Regular Meeting…………………………………………………………....… (page 3) 
 

H. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

7. Manager’s Report……………………………………………………………………………...……. (page 9) 
8. City Clerk’s Report  
9. Staff reports 
 a. Josh Hallquist, Cordova Center Phase I 
 

I. CORRESPONDENCE 

10. Letter from DeLoach family of Cordova, Alabama in re snowfall……..……………………...… (page 10) 
11. Letter from Mr. Allum of Manitoba, Canada in re snowfall……………………………………... (page 11) 
12. Letter from Dave O’Brien in re snow and sandbags………………………………………..……. (page 12) 

13. Letter from Members of the Chosin Few, naming unnamed mountain…………………..………. (page 13) 

14. Letter from DNR requesting comments on naming unnamed mountain…………………………. (page 14) 

15. Letter from John Madden DHSEM Director, snow event in Prince William Sound………...…… (page 28) 

16. Letter to John Madden DHSEM Director, in re AK Shield 2012 Participation………………….. (page 30) 

17. Letter to Rehfeld, Director OMB, in re FY12 supplemental budget request………………..……. (page 32) 
 

J. NEW BUSINESS 

19. Resolution 02-12-10…………………………………………………………………… (voice vote)(page 34) 
A resolution of the Cordova City Council in support of House Bill No. 184 relating to the sharing 
of tax revenue from the fisheries business tax and fishery resource landing tax with municipalities. 

20. Council approval of contract for salvage of Sound Developer and Spartan……..…...... (voice vote)(page 38) 

21. Pending Agenda and Calendar…………………………………………………………….…….... (page 46) 
 

K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

L.  COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

M.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

22. Options regarding Porterhouse tax and business license delinquencies 

23. Union contract negotiations update 
 

N. ADJOURNMENT  
Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the government; (2) Subjects that tend prejudice the 

reputation and character of any person; provided that the person may request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential;  
(4) Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosures. 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, 

you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 

All City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net  



CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

PROCLAMATION 
 

PROCLAMATION NAMING FEBRUARY 2012 

AS SCHOOL BOARD RECOGNITION MONTH 
 

I, Mayor James Kallander, do hereby issue this  

Proclamation Naming February 2012 as  

School Board Recognition Month in Cordova, Alaska 
 

WHEREAS, the mission of public schools is to meet the diverse educational 
needs of all children and to empower them to become competent, productive 
contributors to a democratic society and an ever-changing world; and 

 

WHEREAS, local school board members are committed to children and believe 
that all children can be successful learners and that the best education is tailored to 
the individual needs of the child; and  

 

WHEREAS, local school board members work closely with parents, 
educational professionals, and other community members to create the educational 
vision we want for our students; and  

 

WHEREAS, local school board members are responsible for ensuring the 
structure that provides a solid foundation for our school system; and 

 

WHEREAS, local school board members assure the assessment of students, 
school staff, and educational programs and are accountable to the community; and 

  

WHEREAS, local school board members are strong advocates for public 
education and are responsible for communicating the needs of the school district to 
the public and the public’s expectations to the district. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAMED that the Mayor and City 
Council members of Cordova do hereby express sincere appreciation to the School 

Board of the Cordova School District.   
 

BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED THAT, I urge all citizens to join me in 
recognizing the dedication and hard work of the Cordova School District’s school 
board members and in working with them to mold an education system that meets the 
needs of both today’s and tomorrow’s children. 

 

SIGNED THIS 15
th

 DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2012 
 

 

______________________________ 

James Kallander, Mayor 

1



 

A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:    January 26, 2012 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
CC:    File 
   
SUBJECT:      Appointment of 2012 Election Board members 
 

 
Below are the names of the individuals who have been selected to serve on the election 
board for the 2012 General Election of March 6, 2012.   
 
Recommended motion: Move to concur with the Mayor’s appointment of the 2012 
General Election board members as follows:    
 
Diana Rubio, Chairperson 
Becky Chapek 
Ruth Steele 
Sue Shellhorn 
Ann Schultz 
Seawan Gehlbach 
Susan Bourgeois 
Robyn Kincaid 
 
Required action:  Majority voice vote or approval of the consent calendar. 
 
   

2



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 1, 2012 

PAGE 1 OF 6 

 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

FEBRUARY 1, 2012 @ 7:30 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

MINUTES 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor James Kallander called the Council Regular Meeting to order at 7:30 pm on February 1, 2012, 
in the Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Kallander led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call was Mayor James Kallander and Council members David Allison, Bret Bradford, 
EJ Cheshier and David Reggiani. Council members Keith van den Broek, James Kacsh and Robert 

Beedle were absent. Also present were City Manager Mark Lynch and Deputy City Clerk Robyn 

Kincaid.  
 

D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 

M/Reggiani S/Allison to approve the Regular Agenda. 
Reggiani corrected that the Executive Session #31 for Personnel matter – Clerk Contract review should 
have “Personnel matter” stricken to read “Clerk Contract review”. 
Vote on motion: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 3 absent (van den Broek, Kacsh, Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST – None 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

1. Guest Speakers  
a. Captain Michael Neussl, Deputy Commissioner for Marine Operations AK DOT&PF (via 

teleconference). Captain Neussl thanked the Mayor and Council stating that AMHS (Alaska Marine 
Highway System) has many concerns with missed sailings due to weather, stranded ball teams etc. He 
wanted to assure Council that they are aware of the issues and are working on solutions. They feel that 
some of the issues they are having with making Cordova a home-port could use some community input 
on solutions. When the Chenega home-ported in Cordova it became a crew issue as they did not live in 
town and were forced to find temporary housing. Many crew members didn’t bid for the position 
openings in Cordova as a result of the housing issue. This forced AMHS to send crew members anyway 
and pay for their housing making it a very expensive operation. The consistent issue is that finding 
housing in Cordova is difficult and expensive. Mayor Kallander pointed out that the Aurora has housing 
on-board unlike the fast ferry so the crew doesn’t have to find housing. He is hearing from the 
community that they like the fast ferry. Those that deal with freight like the Aurora for its capacity and 
reliability, however, many of the storms that resulted in canceled sailing this winter would have kept the 
Aurora in port as well. He would like to involve the community in finding a solution. Bradford stated 
that the community members that he has spoken to enjoy the fast ferry in the summer and the Aurora in 
the winter but housing would still be an issue. He is in favor of a work session but thinks they should 
come up with options to discuss. He asked Captain Neussl if they had considered a bunkhouse type 
situation. Captain Neussl responded that they have considered the idea and there are pros and cons to 
that idea. Mayor Kallander stated that it would be nice to get a gauge from the community on what they 
want and that may be enough incentive to push forward whichever solution. Bradford pointed out that 
the out of town element that raves about the fast ferry would not be represented in a work session. 
Cheshier stated that he gets the feeling from people that they are horrified to schedule anything because 
they don’t know if the ferry will run over or back. Mayor Kallander presented the idea that a work 

3



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 1, 2012 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

session in a month would give Captain Neussl time to pull together some more details for such a 
meeting. Captain Neussl stated that the summer schedule is already published and they are developing 
the winter schedule now.  
 

van den Broek joined the meeting at 7:50 pm 
 

Cheshier asked what the crew has done for housing in the summer with the Chenega. Neussl responded 
that it was a wide variety of trailers, rooms, and hotels. Mayor Kallander asked for Council consent to 
schedule a work session in 4 to 6 weeks. Council concurred. Neussl apologized for the cancelations and 
the inconvenience it has caused people but safety is always their first concern.  
 

Kacsh joined the meeting at 7:55 pm 
 

b. Buck Adams, UBS Financial – City Investments (via teleconference) 

Adams congratulated Cordova on making it through the snow emergency. He added that we have been 
on the news everywhere. He informed Council that the Federal Reserve has chosen to keep interest rates 
at essentially a 0% rate of return till 2014. They decided to hold the cash from those assets for cash on 
hand in case of a need for it with the Cordova Center project. He stated that the crisis in Europe had an 
effect on the 2011 Dow over 13%. He reviewed the financial report in the packet for Council. He stated 
that the crisis in Europe has changed things. Greece and Italy have shuffled governments. It is likely that 
the private bond holders in Greece will take a cut. The impact is going to be less confidence in sovereign 
government. Reggiani thanked Adams for the report and asked if the Security Based Line of Credit was 
going to be coming soon. Adams replied that it will be available shortly as it has passed the legal stage 
and had to be reviewed by an outside council. He had hoped it would be ready for this meeting.  

 

2. Audience comments regarding agenda items  
Max Wiese, 400 Railroad Row, spoke in support of the resolution for the Pioneer Igloo. They hope to do 
some work on the building and keep it usable as a community building.  
 

3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions  
Jim Nygaard, 1003 Young Dr, reported that the Tip-off tournament was a success thanks to the City 
crew in taking care of the parking lots and streets. It was good for the community to get out and shake 
off the cabin fever from all the snow. They are working on a lighting retrofit. He has a couple sample 
kits that he will be installing in the next two weeks. If the legislature does not support the schools with 
money this year it will mark 3-years without their money in the classroom causing more teacher cuts. No 
Child Left Behind is going on 10-years and some school districts are struggling. He encouraged Council 
to follow Representative Keller’s bill for funding for Private Schools and Home Schools. The school 
calendar is going to the School Board for approval. They moved some teacher in-service days to the end 
of the year and turned those days into regular school days allowing them to preserve the holidays and 
Spring Break. They do have a few snow removal issues such as broken windows and a propane bottle 
leak but nothing major. The kids will be moving into the ILP building tomorrow. They will have an 
open house homecoming weekend. Bradford asked which bills he mentioned. Nygaard responded they 
were House Bill 256 and Representative Keller’s Bill. Mayor Kallander asked if the School Board was 
against Keller’s Bill. Nygaard responded that they were and mentioned that the last Timber Receipt 
check should have come in the week.  
 

Student Council reported that they are working on Homecoming which will be a Star Wars theme.  
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

Mayor Kallander stated that the consent calendar was before Council. 
4. Proclamation of Appreciation to Cara Heitz 
5. Proclamation of Appreciation to Jim Nygaard 

4



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 1, 2012 

PAGE 3 OF 6 

6. Waive right to protest renewal of liquor license Powder House – beverage dispensary Lic #919 
7. Resolution 02-12-09 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, supporting the restoration and 
rehabilitation of the Cordova Pioneer Igloo #19 building  
8. Record unexcused absence of Council member Allison 1/18/12 Regular Council Meeting 
Vote on Consent Calendar:  6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Beedle). Cheshier – yes; Reggiani – yes; van den 
Broek – yes; Kacsh – yes; Allison – yes and Bradford – yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 

Mayor Kallander read the Proclamation of Appreciation to Cara Heitz adding that she has done a great 
job and Cordova really appreciates it. Heitz reported that she has started some of her traveling and 
meeting other states’ Teachers of the Year while representing Alaska. Mayor Kallander stated that he 
has enjoyed her website updates on her travels.  
 

Mayor Kallander read the Proclamation of Appreciation to Jim Nygaard adding that the Proclamation is 
an understatement of the contribution Nygaard has made to this community and that he will be missed. 
Nygaard stated that it has been his pleasure to work with the City Council who has supported him in all 
of his ideas. He reported that he doesn’t get to look forward to as much traveling as Heitz but will be 
going to Huston next week for some training. Nygaard added that he hears from people all the time that 
Heitz is not only the Teacher of the Year but the very best they have ever seen.  
 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

M/Reggiani S/Bradford to approve the minutes. 
Bradford corrected that the minutes listed as 12-21-12 should read 12-21-11. Clerk noted 
9. Minutes of 12-21-12 11 Regular Meeting 
10. Minutes of 01-04-12 Public Hearing 
11. Minutes of 01-04-12 Regular Meeting 
12. Minutes of 01-09-12 Special Meeting 
13. Minutes of 01-11-12 Special Meeting 
14. Minutes of 01-18-12 Regular Meeting 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS  

15. Award bid for cleaning of Spartan 
Lynch reported that there were two proposals submitted for the cleaning of the Spartan and this is the 
one had the lower contract price.   
 

M/Kacsh S/van den Broek to direct the City Manager to accept the proposal by Alaska Marine 
Response per the terms of their Proposal Letter and RFP #01-12 for cleaning of the vessel Spartan for 
the total sum of Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($11,800.00) 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

16. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Kallander reported that the results for the speed study on Whitshed road will be out this spring. 
He called the DOT Superintendent in Valdez about snowplowing on Lake Ave and Whitshed which 
proved to be a fruitful phone call. He met with Lynch on the RFP for the Sound Developer, boat ramp 
and dock. They completed the RFP and another survey was completed for the breakwater extension. He 
had lots of correspondence with Bitney over the hospital roof and the Governors supplemental budget. 
He will report more on that at the next meeting. Vivian did a great job of supporting their efforts with 
photos and a write-up on the snow damage. Council met last night with Susan Humphrey-Barnet from 
Providence and our attorney Holly Wells concerning the hospital governance. They reviewed four 

5



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 1, 2012 

PAGE 4 OF 6 

different scenarios for governance and Council selected one that had been popular with the community 
and Council. It will probably be several weeks before that topic is visited again.  
 

17. Manager’s Report  
Lynch reported that he was very thankful to staff for the really long hours they put in during the first two 
weeks of January. Everyone is now playing catch-up from the snow emergency. The next Union 
Contract meeting will be February 13th or 14th. He will not be going to AML but might make a quick 
visit to Juneau late February. There was a RFP out for the cleaning of the Sound Developer and Spartan. 
The City received one bid which he rejected because he did not feel it was in the best interest of the 
City. They will be putting that RFP back out and expanding their advertising. He is working on the 
North Fill Floating dock RFP. The City has stopped paying shovelers for the snow emergency. He stated 
that the 6th would be the first day to be able to use the Line of Credit from UBS. He might have a 
proposal for Council by the meeting on the 15th. Kacsh asked if they could have an executive session on 
the Sound Developer RFP rejection tonight or does it have to wait till the next meeting. Lynch called 
Holly and she advised against it. Lynch stated that the proposed cost was higher than expected. The new 
bid deadline would be removal by March 31st. He is hopeful to get more bids this time around.  
 

18. City Clerk’s Report – written in packet 
Deputy City Clerk Kincaid reported that City Clerk Bourgeois is on vacation and will be back on the 
15th however Kincaid will be in the office during regular hours if they need anything.  
 

19. Staff Reports 
a.   Josh Hallquist, COR, Cordova Center Project  

Hallquist gave Council a handout. Reggiani asked if the Cordova Center had any snow damage. 
Hallquist replied that they did not. The snow load on the roof is currently 56 lbs. per sf and it is built to 
hold up to 75 lbs. per sf plus 20 lbs. per sf of dead load. They are currently working to remove the snow 
from the roof. The stone work and roofing have been postponed until the weather gets better. He is 
unsure of their plan. Mayor Kallander asked if he is having architect issues too. Hallquist replied in the 
affirmative stating that there is no action on the outstanding claims and added that Dokoozian has many 
outstanding claims also. Mayor Kallander stated that the design for Phase II is still at 85% and asked 
when it will be at 100%. Hallquist responded that there are some things they are looking into in the 
theater that is holding them up. He would like the mechanical and electrical to be looked at to avoid any 
future issues that could be easily solved now. Mayor Kallander stated that the schedule slip is 
concerning as is the procurement issues adding that the windows still haven’t been ordered. Hallquist 
agreed stating that they will not be meeting their deadlines and want to shut down for the winter. He 
reiterated that he is unsure of their plan. He is trying to get them to make their own decisions.  

b. Cathy Sherman, Cordova Center update 
Sherman reported that they have been doing lots of documentation and letters on the issues listed in 
Hallquist report. She is working on a review of the documents we do have. It is on the agenda tonight.  
      Quarterly Reports – 4Q, 2011 

a. Buck Adams, UBS Financial, City Investments 

 b. Sam Greenwood, City Planner 
 c. Paul Trumblee, City Fire Marshal 
 d. Susie Herschleb, Director of Parks & Recreation 

 e. Moe Zamarron, Director of Public Works 
Zamarron reported that his department has been concentrating on the snow. He has several positions 
open right now for employment: Waste Water Technician (interviewing now), Streets Shop Mechanic, 2 
Refuse workers and a combined Supervisor for the Streets and Refuse Departments. Cheshier asked 
about the overhang roof that collapsed at the baler. Zamarron responded that they took down the 

6



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 1, 2012 

PAGE 5 OF 6 

damaged portion and what was dangerous. It was high enough that it really didn’t give that much 
protection anyway. They will be addressing the matter in more detail this summer.  
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
21. FY13 Population Determination from DCCED 
22. Mayor letter to PWSSC & Harvill in re Fill Project help 
23. Mayor letter to NVE in re Power to Hartney Bay  
Reggiani stated that the Population Determination shows a 7% increase over the past two years; which, 
to him, is a very good sign. Mayor Kallander asked for Council’s guidance on the letter from NVE on 
extending utilities out Hartney Bay. He stated that one of their sources for funding is through State 
funds. He didn’t want to write a letter of support that could potentially compete with items on Council’s 
CIP list. Bradford stated that Council’s CIP list wouldn’t change. Mayor Kallander responded that he 
didn’t want to be in the position of picking and choosing who he writes letters of support for. Reggiani 
stated that he likes Council’s process of reviewing the CIP list quarterly as it gives the community an 
opportunity to present their ideas to Council for inclusion on the list. A letter of support could indirectly 
be perceived as an addition to the CIP list. He reiterated that the process is very open. Kacsh stated that 
the subdivision is outside the City limits. He understands the perception; however, the money for this 
project would not be City of Cordova money. Bradford agreed with Kacsh that it is outside of the City 
limits and would be NVE money. Reggiani stated that the legislative body looks at it all as Cordova 
money as a district more than a City, its all perception. Mayor Kallander stated that he is not looking for 
a negative campaign on anything. He will ask Council before writing letters of support. Allison agreed 
with Reggiani and stated that he would like to see them cooperate with the Electric Cooperative before it 
is fully supported. Mayor Kallander stated he will contact NVE and ask for more information.  
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS – None 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

24. Alaskan Wet Dog Race – Council discussion 
Reggiani stated that this item was in correspondence in a previous meeting and Council decided to put it 
on an agenda for discussion. There are two entities; one in support of the race and one against the race. 
Bradford stated that this could be a good shot in the arm for Cordova. Mayor Kallander stated that it 
probably would be a burden on the fishing community and a boost to the housing and tourist 
community. A lot of media and support people would need housing and food. Van den Broek stated that 
the deadline for opposing with the DNR has past. He thinks this is more of a Chamber of Commerce 
thing. He doesn’t think there needs to be anything written, just let it happen and see what happens. 
Bradford stated that he is happy it is in the Prince William Sound. Mayor Kallander stated that 
everything on TV lately is about Alaska so this is a perfect time to start something like this up.  
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

25. Council approval of Contract with DHI Consulting Construction drawing and RFP preparation for 
the North Breakwater Extension and Tideland Fill Proposal 
 

M/Kacsh S/van den Broek to direct the City Manager to sign and enter into the attached “Agreement for 
Consulting Services” (Exhibit B) for with DHI Consulting Engineers for Construction Drawings and 
RFP Preparations as set forth in the “Engineering Scope of Services and Fee Proposal” (Exhibit A).  
 

Lynch reported that this is the work for the RFP for the Breakwater and Tidal-fill. The estimate was less 
than originally anticipated. The deadline is the 27th of February so we should be able to award in March. 
Mayor Kallander stated that this job is being primarily managed by us and by doing so it will save us 
hundreds of thousands of dollars.  
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

7



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 1, 2012 

PAGE 6 OF 6 

26. Council approval of Contract with OAC Services Constructability review and estimating for 
Cordova Center Phase II 
M/Reggiani S/Cheshier to direct the City Manager to sign and enter into the attached “Phase II Cordova 
Center, Consulting Services Proposal Constructability Review and Estimate.” 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

27. Pending Agenda and Calendar  

Council chose to cancel the second meeting in February due to quorum issues and chose to schedule a 
Special meeting on the 23rd of February at 7:00 pm.  
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION – None 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

28. Council Comments  
Kacsh stated that the Student Council used to be allowed to speak and vote during the meetings and he 
would like to see that happen again as it is good practice.  
 

Allison thanked staff for the extra time they put in. The extra effort is appreciated.   
 

Cheshier thanked staff for their hard work during this hard winter and thanked the School 
Superintended Jim Nygaard and teacher Cara Heitz for doing an outstanding job. We are very lucky to 
have them both in the community.  
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Council took a recess at 9:30 pm and came back at 9:40 
 

Reggiani informed Council that the Cordova Center Financial Update isn’t necessary 
29. Cordova Center Financial Update 
 

30. Union contract negotiations 
M/Reggiani S/Bradford to discuss the union contract negotiations. Subjects that may be discussed are 
matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of 
the government. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

Council entered executive session at 9:47 pm; Council came out of executive session at 10:05 pm 
 

31. Personnel matter – Clerk Contract review 
M/Reggiani S/Allison to discuss the City Clerk’s contract review. Subjects that may be discussed are 
matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of 
the government.  
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

Council entered executive session at 10:07 pm; Council came out of executive session at 10:25 pm 
 

R.  ADJOURNMENT 

M/Allison S/Bradford to adjourn the regular meeting at 10:27 pm 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Beedle). Motion passes.  
 
 

Approved: February 23, 2011 
 
 

Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Robyn Kincaid, Deputy City Clerk  

8



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
February 16, 2012 Manager’s Report (for 02/23/12 Council meeting) 
 
 
 
 
Personnel issues: An offer has been made and accepted for the Library Director position. We are still working 
on filling positions in Information Services and Public Works. 
 
Union Contract/Grievances: This is consuming the majority of my time currently. I have met with Union 
representatives on several occasions. I have meetings with them again March 5 & 6. Grievance arbitration 
concerning management’s right to assign work in the best interest of the City is set to begin in mid-June. 
 
Hospital Contract: Providence is scheduled to begin management on March 1, 2012, and we are working on a 
joint press release. Interviews for a new Administrator will begin February 20. 
 
PERS: Termination study completed. Resolution to remove administrator from Hospital PERS agreement will 
be forthcoming once a final date for a new Administrator is established. 
 
Sound Developer: Memo for salvage in packet. 
 
Spartan: Memo for salvage in packet. 
 
Breakwater/Fill: RFP is currently being advertised.  
 
North Fill Floating Dock: RFP is nearly complete and will be advertised in the near future. 
 
Snow Emergency: Snow dumps have been reduced to acceptable levels and the recent rains have helped reduce 
the quantity of snow overall. DHS&EM will be conducting an applicants’ briefing on Tuesday February 21 to 
start the process of determining what public entities and facilities are eligible for potential reimbursement from 
State or Federal agencies. Also, the City has purchased empty sandbags to have on hand in case we experience 
flooding from the melting snow. 
 
 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: 

citymanager@cityofcordova.net 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

February 18, 2012 
 
 
 

Memo to City Council 
Re:  HB184 Support Resolution 
 

The attached Resolution supporting the passage of HB184 pertains to increasing the share of 

fish tax allocated to municipalities. The Harbor Commission passed a similar resolution, and 

recommended that Council do likewise. Other communities in Alaska, such as Petersburg, Ketchikan, 

and Wrangell, along with the Alaska Municipal League have passed similar supporting resolutions. 

 
 
Thank you, 
 
Mark Lynch 
City Manager

 
 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

 

34



DRAFT 
 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 02-12-10 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CORDOVA CITY COUNCIL IN SUPPORT OF HOUSE BILL NO. 

184 RELATING TO THE SHARING OF TAX REVENUE FROM THE FISHERIES BUSINESS 

TAX AND FISHERY RESOURCE LANDING TAX WITH MUNICIPALITIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the majority of the public boat harbors in Alaska were constructed by the State 

during the 1960's and 1970's, and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Alaska in recent years has transferred ownership of most of these State 

owned harbors, many of which were at or near the end of their service life at the time of transfer, to local 
municipalities; and  

 
WHEREAS, local municipalities are in need of additional funding to repair and in many cases 

replace the former State owned harbors; and  
 
WHEREAS, these harbors represent critical transportation links and are the transportation hubs 

for waterfront commerce and economic development in Alaska, especially for communities directly 
supporting the commercial fishing industry, and  

 
WHEREAS, under the current tax system, the State shares 50% of the revenues generated from 

the fisheries business tax and the fishery resource landing tax with the local municipalities where the 
fish are first landed and/or processed, and  

 
WHEREAS, under provision of House Bill No. 184, the local municipalities' share of the 

revenues generated from the fisheries business tax and the fishery resource landing tax would increase to 
75% with the intent that the additional revenue would help maintain and improve the harbor facilities.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Cordova City Council supports House Bill 

No. 184 and urges passage by the Alaska Legislature and signature by the Governor. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 23
rd

 DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2012. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

James Kallander, Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 
              
        ____________________________  
        Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

35



 
 
 
 
MEMO 
 
DATE:  February 13, 2012 
 
TO:  City Council 
 
FROM:  Harbormaster Muma 
 
RE:  HB 184 
 
Attached you will find a copy of Resolution 02-12-01 of the Harbor Commission 
concerning HB 184.  The Harbor Commission would like the City Council to also 
consider supporting this bill as it would create additional revenue which could be used to 
support harbor infrastructure. 
 
  

36



37



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 February 20, 2012 
Memo to City Council 
Re: Vessel Salvage 
 
CMC 5.12.040  “Council approval of contracts” says: 

 
No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than fifteen 

thousand dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum setting forth the 

following essential terms of the contract: 

A.   The identity of the contractor; 

B.   The contract price; 

C.   The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the contract; and 

D.   The time for performance under the contract. 

 
 
I recommend the city enter into a contract with RFP, Inc. dba Peninsula Scrap & Salvage 

Company / S&R Enterprises of Soldotna, Alaska, to perform salvage of two (2) vessels, the 

Sound Developer and the Spartan as set forth in RFP #02-12-2.  

 

The contract price is $ 67,000.00.  

 

The nature and quantity of the performance the city shall receive is set forth in the attached 

Request for Proposal (Exhibit A) and Proposal (Exhibit B). 

 

The time for performance is for all work to be completed not later than May 30, 2012. (Sound 

Developer moved from current location by March 30, and both vessels removed entirely from 

the City by May 30).  

 

Recommended action: Voice Vote.  

I move to direct the City Manager to sign and enter into a contract to fulfill the terms of the 

attached proposal for salvage of the vessels Sound Developer and Spartan (Exhibit B).  

 
Thank you, 
Mark Lynch 
City Manager 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

 

38



EXHIBIT   A 
City of Cordova 
Cordova, Alaska 
Harbor Department 
Request for Proposal # 02‐12‐2 
Removal of derelict vessels 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
The  City  of  Cordova  is  requesting  written  proposals  from  qualified  vendors  interested  in 

removing  two  (2) derelict vessels  from  the City’s boat storage area. Sealed proposals, plainly marked, 
“RFP #02‐12‐2 ‐ REMOVAL OF DERELICT VESSELS” addressed to the City Manager, City of Cordova, P.O. 
Box 1210, Cordova, AK 99574 will be accepted until 2:00 P.M. February 17, 2012. PROPOSALS RECEIVED 
AFTER 2:00 P.M. WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED. 

 
Proposal  specifications  may  be  obtained  at  the  front  desk  of  Cordova  City  Hall,  or  from 

citymanager@cityofcordova.net, or by calling (907) 424‐6200. 
The City of Cordova reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive technical or legal 

deficiencies, to accept any proposal that is in the best interest of the City and to negotiate the terms and 
conditions of any proposal leading to acceptance and final execution of a contract for services. 

If  you have  any questions pertaining  to  the  submittal  and  review process of City bids please 
contact the City Manager at the following number: 907‐424‐6200. 

The  City  welcomes  potential  Contractors  to  visit  the  Cordova  Boat  Storage  area  to  better 
understand the dynamics, operations, location and access throughout the area. To arrange for a visit or 
if you have any questions pertaining to the specifics of this RFP and the scope of services, please contact 
the Harbormaster, Dale Muma at the following number: 907‐424‐6400. 

 
I. INTENT OF SOLICITATION 
The  City  of  Cordova  (City)  is  soliciting  competitive  proposals  from  qualified  contractors  to 

remove two (2) derelict vessels from the Cordova Boat Storage area adjacent to the City’s Boat Haulout 
Facility.  The  City  seeks  a  contractor  who  will  work  cooperatively  with  the  City  to  meet  the  City’s 
objective to remove these derelict vessels with the least impact to our commercial fishing industry and 
economy.  For  a  more  complete  description  of  service  requirements  refer  to  SECTION  III,  SCOPE  OF 
SERVICES. 

 
II. BACKGROUND 
There are two (2) derelict vessels to be removed under this solicitation.  
First, the Sound Developer is a vessel of approximately 132’ length and 29’ beam, estimated at 

275 tons, currently located in an excavated trench at the edge of the boat storage area. This vessel has 
been  substantially  cleaned  of  oily  products  and  recyclables  (batteries,  electronics,  fuel,  lubricating, 
steering, waste and hydraulic oils and oily bilge  slops) by Global Diving and Salvage under a  contract 
with the U.S. Coast Guard.  

The second is the Spartan, a vessel of approximately 79’ length and 22’ beam, estimated at 150 
tons and currently  in dry dock  in the Cordova boat storage area. A contract has been awarded to have 
this  vessel  substantially  cleaned of oily products and  recyclables, and will be  completed by March 1, 
2012.  

Both vessels may have other hazardous materials aboard including small amounts of petroleum 
contamination that may need to be controlled during salvage, potential asbestos or other contaminants 
that may require special handling. 

39



EXHIBIT   A 
 
III. SCOPE OF WORK 
Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  the  safety  of  Contractor's  employees  and  others 

relative  to  Contractor's  work,  work  procedures,  material,  equipment,  transportation,  signage  and 
related  activities  and  equipment.  Contractor  shall  operate  in  compliance  with  all  State  and  Federal 
regulations. Contractor shall possess and keep  in force all  licenses, business permits and other permits 
required to perform the services of this Agreement.  

Upon  award  of  contract,  the  Sound  Developer  will  be  available  immediately,  and  must  be 
removed entirely from  its present  location no  later than March 31, 2012. The Spartan will be available 
on March 1, 2012 and should be removed from its present location no later than March 31, 2012.  

The City prefers proposals that would remove both vessels from the boat storage area by March 
31, 2012, and transport them to an interim storage are, and then remove them from the City via barge 
by September 15, 2012. The City will provide a  location for  interim stockpiling, and will allow use of a 
City dock for barge loading.  

The  City will  also  consider  proposals  to  remove  both  vessels  from  the  boat  storage  area  by 
March 31, 2012, and transport them to the City Landfill approximately 20 miles away.  In this case the 
City will provide an interim stockpiling location, if requested by proposer, to allow transport of scrap to 
the City’s landfill after weight restrictions are removed from State Highways and weather improves. 

In either case transporting from the current location will be necessary, and contractor should be 
aware of current weight restrictions on roadways. 

The city will consider all options proposed to save cost of removal of both vessels.  A potential 
option might be to leave the bottom of the hull of the Sound Developer in the ground.  As long as Cabin, 
bulwarks, decks, engines and other such attachments were removed so that upon refilling there were no 
voids in the soil and full compaction can be achieved the City would consider such a proposal. 

This request for proposals does not include filling of the trench where the Sound Developer now 
rests. 

 
IV. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
Each Vendor shall submit three (3) copies of its proposal. The proposal shall be submitted in the 

following manner: 
1. Contractor Description. Provide a description and history of the Contractor emphasizing the 

Contractor's  resources  and  expertise  in  the  area(s)  relevant  to  this  RFP.  In  addition,  identify  the 
person(s)  who  has  decision‐making  authority  for  the  Contractor;  and  who  will  be  the  Contractor’s 
primary contact person(s) with the City.  

2. Proposals 
� Clearly state the total cost to the City for removing the two vessels. 
� Clearly state the entire process by which the vessels will be removed. 
� Identify whether Contractor will remove the vessels entirely from the City or move them to the 
City’s Landfill. 

� Provide evidence of at least $1,000,000 liability insurance 
� Provide evidence of legal worker’s compensation insurance, as applicable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



EXHIBIT   A 
V. SELECTION CRITERIA 
Each proposal shall be evaluated based on the following criteria based on the following sections 

of Cordova Municipal Code (CMC): 
1. Total cost of Proposal to the City; (CMC 5.12.120(A) 
2. Contractor’s qualifications and responsibility. (CMC 5.12.170) 

a. The  skill and experience demonstrated by  the bidder  in performing contracts of a 
similar nature; 

b. The bidder's record for honesty and integrity; 
c. The bidder's  capacity  to perform  in  terms of  facilities,  equipment, personnel  and 

financing; 
d. The past and present compliance by the bidder with laws and ordinances related to 

its performance under the contract; and 
e. The bidder's past performance under city contracts.  If  the bidder has  failed  in any 

material way  to perform  its obligations under any  contract with  the  city,  the  city 
manager may consider the bidder to be not responsible.  

f. The bidder's past performance of  financial obligations to the city.  If at  the  time of 
award the bidder is delinquent, overdue or in default on the payment of any money, 
debt or  liability  to  the  city,  the  city manager  shall  consider  the bidder  to be not 
responsible.  

 
Proposals will be opened at the front desk in City Hall on February 17, 2012 at approximately 2:05 P.M. 
A contract may be awarded at a Special meeting of  the Cordova City Council on February 23, 2012  if 
recommended by City Manager. The City of Cordova reserves the right to reject any and all proposals 
(CMC  5.12.180),  to  waive  technical  or  legal  deficiencies,  to  make  such  investigation  as  it  deems 
necessary  to evaluate Contractor's qualifications,  to accept any proposal  that may be deemed  in  the 
best  interest of  the City and  to negotiate  terms and conditions of any proposal  leading  to acceptance 
and final execution of a contract for services. 

 

41



42



43



44



45



 

Pending agenda: 
 

Schedule a Council Work Session with State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public 
Facilities – specifically, Captain Michael Neussl, Deputy Commission, Marine Operations – 

confirmed for March 22, 2012 – location and time to be determined (let’s discuss) 

 
 
Capital Priorities List Meeting – March 2012 (do you all want the resolution brought before 

you again at March 7 meeting – or is it too soon being as though legislature is in session 

with our current list?), June 2012, September 2012, December 2012  

 

 
State of AKDOT&PF “Town Hall Meeting” in Cordova to discuss/answer community questions 
about CRH 36 mile bridge closure/repair – let’s set a new date for this – Moe Zamarron to get 

back with Clerk once he has heard from DoT folks – DoT has responded that March 8 works 

for them – Clerk would like Council’s input as to location and time – I was thinking 6pm at 

Mt. Eccles commons (that was the plan before the January 18 meeting was canceled) 
 
 

Committees: 
 

Cordova Center Committee:  Tim Joyce, Sylvia Lange, VACANCY, Darrel Olsen, Larue 
 Barnes, VACANCY, Valerie Covel, David Roemhildt, Dan Logan, Nancy Bird, and 
 Cathy Sherman 
 
Fisheries Advisory Committee:  David Reggiani, PWSAC; Ken Roemhildt, Seafood Sales; Jim 
 Holley, AML; Torie Baker, Marine Advisory Program Coordinator; John Bocci; and 
 Jeremy Botz, ADF&G   
 
Cordova Trails Committee:  Elizabeth Senear, VACANCY, Jim Kallander, Toni Godes, and  
 David Zastrow 
 
Public Services Building Design Committee:  David Reggiani - Chairman, Chief Bob (Griffiths), 
 Martin  Moe, Jim Kacsh, Dick Groff, Mike Hicks, Tom Bailer 
 
 

Calendars: 4 months’ worth of calendars attached hereto 

 
February 2012 
March 2012 
April 2012 
May 2012 

46



February 2012 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

  1 Clerk vaca——— 

 

 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

2 ——————— 3 ——————— 4 

5 

SUPERBOWL  

SUNDAY—

WOOHOO NY  

GIANTS!!!!! 

6 Clerk vaca——— 7 ——————— 

AML Conf Juneau 

 

Decl of Candidacy 

closes for Mar elec 

8 ——————— 

AML Conf Juneau 

Hrbr Cms 7pm CH 

HSB 7pm LMR 

Sch Bd 7pm HSL 

9 ——————— 

AML Conf Juneau 

10 ——————— 11 

12 13 Clerk vaca——— 14 ——————— 

 

 

P&Z Commission 

Mtg 7pm CH 

15 

 

 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

16  17 18 

19 20 

Presidents’ Day—City 

Hall Offices Closed 

21 

5:30 Prks & Rec LMR 

Absentee voting in 

person at CH—thru 

3/5/12 

22 23 

 

7:00 spec mtg LMR 

24 25 

26 27 28 29   Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

47



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

   1 2 3 

4 5 6 

ELECTION DAY 

Polls open 7am—8pm 

Library Mtg Room 

7 

 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

8 

 

6:00 Town Hall mtg 

w-DoT in re 36 mi 

bridge Mt. Eccles 

9 

2012 Property Tax 

Assessment Notices 

in the mail (30 day 

appeal period begins) 

10 

11 12 

 

 

—-spring break—- 

13 

 

 

—-spring break—- 

14 

 

 

—-spring break—- 

15 

 

7:00 spec mtg to certi-

fy election results 

16 

 

 

—-spring break—- 

17 

18 19 20 21 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

22 

AMHS work session 

w Neussl time and 

place TBD 

23 24 

25 26 

 

Seward’s Day—City 

Hall Offices Closed 

27 28 29 30 31 

March 2012 

48



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

5 6 7 

8 9 

Last day to appeal 

property assessments 

10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 

 

7pm BOE meeting 

LMR 

17 18 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30     Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

April 2012 

49



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

 1 2 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 

Memorial Day  

holiday—City Hall 

Offices Closed 

29 30 31  Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

May 2012 

50


	AGENDA 02-23-12 SPEC
	f_cc_3
	f_cc_4
	f_cc_4
	g_min_5
	h_7_mgrrpt
	i_corres_10
	i_corres_11
	i_corres_12
	i_corres_13
	i_corres_14
	i_corres_14a
	i_corres_15
	letter from DHSEM
	i_corres_15

	i_corres_16
	i_corres_17
	j_nb_19
	j_nb_19a
	j_nb_19b
	j_nb_19c
	j_nb_20
	j_nb_20a
	j_nb_20b
	j_nb_21
	j_nb_21a

